
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 

PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC., 

Plaintiff, 

 v. 

ICON HEALTH & FITNESS, INC. 

Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

C.A. No. 20-662-RGA
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

REDACTED PUBLIC VERSION

ICON HEALTH & FITNESS, INC.’S FIRST AMENDED COUNTERCLAIMS 

Counterclaimant ICON Health & Fitness, Inc. (“ICON”) brings the following first 

amended counterclaims against counterdefendant Peloton Interactive, Inc. (“Peloton”).  

PARTIES 

1. ICON is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Delaware with its

principal place of business located at 1500 South 1000 West, Logan, Utah, 84321.  

2. Peloton Interactive, Inc. is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of

Delaware with its principle place of business located at 158 W 27th Street, New York, New York 

10001. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. This is an action for patent infringement, false advertising under the Lanham Act,

violations of state unfair competition laws, and for declaratory judgment pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 

1 et seq., 15 U.S.C. § 1125, 6 Del. C. § 2531, et seq., and 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201—2202, 

respectively. 

4. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the patent claims pursuant to 28

U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338. Certain claims in this civil action also arise under the Lanham Act, 15 
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U.S.C. § 1125. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the Lanham Act claims pursuant to 

15 U.S.C. § 1121 and under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338. The Court has subject matter 

jurisdiction over the declaratory judgment claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1338, 2201–02, 

and 35 U.S.C. § 101 et seq. Subject matter jurisdiction over related state law claims is proper 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1338 and 1367. The state law claims are integrally interrelated with 

ICON’s federal claims and arise from a common nucleus of operative facts such that the 

administration of the state law claims with the federal claims furthers the interest of judicial 

economy. 

5. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Peloton because it is incorporated in this 

district, and because Peloton has purposefully availed itself of the benefits and protections of the 

laws of the State of Delaware, asserted claims against ICON in this District, and voluntarily 

subjected itself to the Court’s jurisdiction by filing a Complaint against ICON in this District. 

6. Venue for the counterclaims is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 

1391.  

BACKGROUND 

7. Peloton claims it is the inventor of the “first ever at-home exercise bike that 

incorporates a sophisticated graphical user interface . . . that displays live and on-demand cycling 

classes led by some of the world’s best instructors.” Peloton further claims that it invented a 

“leaderboard . . . to show Peloton riders how their performance stacks up against all other riders 

that have taken the same class, past and present, at every point in the class.” 

8. Peloton may be a successful and popular fitness fad, but it has invented absolutely 

nothing. ICON actually sued Peloton in 2016 for infringing upon ICON’s patents that disclose 

and cover the very thing Peloton claims it invented. Peloton conveniently fails to disclose this 
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prior lawsuit brought by ICON to enforce its patents, and, more importantly, it fails to disclose 

the fact that   

ICON’S IFIT® TECHNOLOGY PRE-DATES PELOTON AND INVALIDATES PELOTON’S PATENTS 

9. ICON first developed technology that allowed in-home, live and on-demand 

instructor led classes with competition and leaderboards (“Interactive and Competitive 

Fitness”)—part of a suite of offerings called iFit—at least 12 years before Peloton was founded. 

ICON demonstrated its first iteration of iFit in the late 1990s at a well-known fitness tradeshow 

called the Atlanta Super Show at the Georgia World Congress Center. ICON created a remote 

studio-based treadmill class that was led by an instructor located at ICON’s headquarters in Utah 

and the class participants were located at the tradeshow in Atlanta. The instructor led the remote 

users through a treadmill class, and the speed and incline of the users’ treadmills was remotely 

controlled. Nothing like this had been seen in the fitness industry.  

10. In an October 19, 1999 press release, titled “Turn Your Treadmill Into an Internet 

Appliance with www.iFit.com,” ICON stated, “[f]riends who want to compete against each other 

can ‘schedule a race’ on the site, start simultaneously, and their iFit.com treadmills will send data 

that will post and update each competitors’ position on the course in real time, for everyone to 

see.” In the same press release, ICON also stated “[c]onsumers can easily access an iFit.com 

workout by choosing a live, web-based session with a personal trainer, engaging in live, online 

competition or selecting from a database of ‘streamable’ workouts.”  

11. The first iteration of iFit was just scratching the surface of what iFit would 

become over the next several years. ICON continued to develop its iFit technology over the early 

2000s through intense research, development, and ingenuity. In February 2000, iFit was named 
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the “Most Innovative Product” by Sports Authority, the nation’s largest sporting goods retailer at 

the time.  

12. Below is an example of a few iFit features that were developed by ICON before 

Peloton was founded, including a dynamically updating leaderboard that worked for both live 

and on-demand races.  

 

Above: A dynamically updating leaderboard consisting of a ranked list 
showing users their performance compared to either live or previous users 

 

 

Above: A different view of a leaderboard consisting of a ranked list 
showing users their performance compared to either live or previous users 
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13. Not only did ICON have an operational Interactive and Competitive Fitness 

platform before Peloton, ICON’s platform actually offered more innovative features than 

Peloton. For example, ICON’s platform allowed a user to create their own outdoor route with 

Google Maps and then the exercise device would display real-world images from Google and the 

device would also mimic the actual terrain of the route by varying resistance or incline. iFit also 

offered real-world outdoor cycling, running, and hiking workouts. iFit devices also allow for 

remote control of a device’s operating parameters so a trainer could remotely control a user’s 

device. ICON’s Proform Tour de France bike would also change elevation of the bike depending 

on whether the user was riding up or down an incline. Peloton’s platform does not offer any of 

these features. 

14. In addition to ICON’s actual innovation and sale of Interactive and Competitive 

Fitness devices, ICON had also obtained hundreds of patents on these systems before Peloton 

was founded. 

15. For example, ICON’s U.S. Patent No. 7,628,730 (the ’730 Patent) 1 with a priority 

date of 1999 discloses networked exercise machines which simulate group class environments:  

                                                 
1 Many more ICON patents disclose these same features. ICON is only using the ’730 Patent by 
way of example. 
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The ’730 patent discloses real-time communication between remote users and instructors, live 

and archived (on-demand) cycling classes that users can attend via the internet, and displays for 

providing users with performance data for themselves and leaderboards with the live and 

archived results of fellow users. Using the system disclosed in ICON’s ’730 patent, users could 

experience the same platform that Peloton claims it invented. The problem for Peloton is ICON’s 

invention of this platform dates back to 1999. 

16. ICON’s ’730 patent is just an example of around 120 iFit patents with priority that 

predate Peloton. These patents are a result of years of innovation, investment, and hard work that 

developed iFit from its first iteration demonstrated at the Atlanta Super Show into a full suite of 

connected fitness offerings that included the four pillars of fitness: exercise, nutrition, activity, 

and sleep.  

17. While iFit may have been the first to invent Interactive and Competitive Fitness 

systems, others also beat Peloton to the scene. For example, below is an image from a product 
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available for purchase in 2011 that allowed live competition between cyclists and included a 

dynamically updating leaderboard. 

 

 

18. The presence of these other market players is not a surprise to Peloton’s current 

CEO, John Foley (“Foley”). He was well-aware of ICON and its presence in the Interactive and 

Competitive Fitness space before he started Peloton. Before launching Peloton, Foley travelled to 

ICON’s headquarters in Logan, Utah and met with ICON executives seeking access to ICON’s 

technology. ICON was not willing to provide its technology to Foley at that time. 

19. Foley was warned at that meeting, and in subsequent meetings, that if he 

implemented his idea it would infringe ICON’s patents. This did not stop him. Foley forged 

ahead with his idea forcing ICON to file the 2016 patent infringement lawsuit mentioned above. 

That lawsuit was resolved in 2017  

 and ICON believed Peloton 

would fairly compete going forward. ICON soon learned that was not the case. 
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20.  

 

to develop and launch additional 

infringing products, including its “Tread” product, and it went a marketing and public speaking 

campaign that was designed to deceive consumers and investors about Peloton’s product 

offerings, its so-called innovation in being first to market, the lack of any competitors in the 

market, the music offerings on its platform, and the pricing for its bike. Peloton had the media’s 

attention and was fully abusing that attention and  to harm ICON and 

deceive consumers and investors. 

PELOTON’S FALSE AND MISLEADING STATEMENTS CONCERNING ITS PRICING 

21. In an effort to compete with ICON, Peloton has intentionally engaged in a false 

advertising campaign designed to steal customers from ICON and unfairly increase its market 

share. For example, Peloton purposefully disseminated false and misleading information about 

its products throughout the country, including by misleading customers about the price of its 

products and the availability of financing for its products. As a result of this false advertising 

campaign, Peloton has unfairly stolen customers from ICON. Indeed, after implementing this 

false advertising campaign, Peloton’s CEO boasted of Peloton’s “explosive growth.” 

22. Prior to October 2017, if a consumer wanted to purchase a Peloton bike, that 

person would have to pay for the entire bike up front, in addition to paying for the content 

subscription to Peloton’s online classes separately in monthly payments. But many consumers 

could not afford the up-front cost of Peloton’s bike, much less the extra monthly payments for 

Peloton’s content. 
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23. So in an attempt to make its products “more accessible to a broader population,” 

Peloton announced on October 25, 2017 that “[f]or the first time” it was “offering consumers a 

way to purchase the Peloton bike, including access to unlimited live and on-demand classes for 

an entire household, for the starting price of $97 a month for 39 months.” At that time, Peloton 

made clear that the monthly price included both financing of the Peloton bike for $58 per month 

for 39 months at “zero percent APR” as well as the “Peloton [content] subscription, charged at 

$39 per month.” See https://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/award-winning-peloton-bike-

now-available-for-under-100-a-month-for-the-first-time-300542772.html. 

24. Peloton promoted and marketed this “$97 a month” plan extensively. For 

instance, in October 2017, Peloton posted on its Facebook page that “New Peloton financing is 

here! For the first time, get the full experience for $97/month and no money down.” A copy of 

this Facebook post is shown below: 
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25. Additional Facebook posts followed. For instance, in November 2017, Peloton 

posted that a consumer could “[g]et the full Peloton experience, including the bike and unlimited 

classes, for $97/month.” A copy of that Facebook post is shown below: 

 

 

26. Peloton also advertised this “$97 PER MONTH” plan on its website (as shown 

below): 

 

27. Peloton also used email marketing to advertise its “$97 a month” plan. One of 

those email advertisements, sent to consumers in 2017, is shown below. This advertisement 

makes clear that the $97 monthly charge included the “Peloton bike, a subscription to unlimited 

live classes taught by elite NYC instructors, thousands of on-demand classes, and in-home 

delivery”: 
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28. The basics of Peloton’s financing program have not materially changed since 

Peloton rolled out the program in October 2017. All Peloton bike packages still require a 

monthly Peloton All-Access Membership. This means that to this day a consumer qualifying for 

the special 0% financing offer still pays $97 a month for 39 months, which includes $58 a month 

for bike financing and $39 a month for the content subscription. 
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29. Although Peloton’s financing program has not changed, Peloton altered the way it 

advertised this program in a blatant attempt to make its bike look less expensive than it actually 

was so it could attract a “broader population” of consumers and steal sales away from ICON. 

Specifically, these new advertisements falsely claim that Peloton’s bike only costs $58 a month 

and hide the fact that customers are required to purchase its content subscription at an additional 

price of $39, for an actual monthly cost of $97 a month. 

30. A recent example of this false and misleading advertising is shown below. In this 

piece of email marketing, Peloton displays images of its classes that are only available with a 

content subscription, and claims in large lettering that its customers can access “[new] classes” 

and can “ride now, pay over time” for the price of “$58/mo. for 39 months.” The hard-to-read 

small print at the bottom of the advertising explains that a customer can “[g]et the Peloton bike 

for as low as $58/mo. over 39 months at 0% APR. Based on a full price of $2,246. Plus the cost 

of the subscription ($39/mo.). A class subscription gets you unlimited access to Peloton classes.” 

But this small print fails to mention that “All Bike packages require a monthly Peloton All-

Access Membership,” as Peloton explains in additional small print on its website. In other words, 

this advertising misleadingly claims that a customer can “ride now” for only “$58/mo. For 39 

months” when the actual price is still $97 per month for 39 months. 
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31. Peloton launched a similar false and misleading advertisement on television, its 

website, and social media (including Facebook). This video ad, entitled “Anyone Who Wants It,” 

contains similar false and misleading statements about the price of Peloton’s bike and the 

availability of its financing. Specifically, this video shows a handful of people using the online 

content Peloton offers, while a voiceover says “A hard 20 after a hard day isn’t for everyone. 

Waking up before the sun isn’t for everyone. This isn’t for everyone. But at $58 per month, 

Peloton is for anyone who wants it.” By these statements, Peloton misleads consumers into 

thinking that its bike only costs $58 per month. But Peloton’s bike costs far more. Further, not 

“anyone” can get the bike for “$58 per month,” and no one can get the bike and the online 

content dominating the ad for that price. 

32. Contrary to Peloton’s advertising, this financing is only available to “those who 

qualify,” and not “anyone who wants it.” Moreover, Peloton admits in small print that a “[d]own 

payment may be required” even for qualifying consumers. 

33. More importantly, the $58 monthly payment does not cover any of the online 

content that dominates these ads. To get that content, the consumer must pay an additional $39 a 

month for a subscription. Thus, the real monthly payment for qualifying consumers is 

significantly higher at $97 per month ($58 + $39), or $3,783 dollars over 39 months. The 

payments inflate even higher if the consumer does not qualify for the special financing offer. 

34. Although this video includes a disclaimer stating, “Content Subscription 

Separate,” this disclaimer is in small print at the bottom of the screen in white font, making it 

extremely difficult to read, especially given the lighting conditions used in these ads, as shown 

below:  
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35. Even if it was legible, which it is not, this disclaimer fails to explain that “[a]ll 

Bike packages require a monthly Peloton All-Access Membership,” as explained in small print 

on Peloton’s website. 

36. Moreover, this disclaimer is available for less than 10 seconds of the 30 second ad 

(and less than 5 seconds in Peloton’s 15 second version of the ad), making it even more unlikely 
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to be viewed and understood by the consumer. Such a fleeting disclaimer does nothing to dispel 

the misleading nature of Peloton’s advertisements. 

37. Similarly, Peloton’s hard-to-read disclosures on its website do nothing to alleviate 

the misleading nature of Peloton’s video and email advertising, especially when a consumer can 

purchase Peloton’s bike over the phone or at a brick and mortar store, without ever seeing those 

website disclosures. 

38. In a recent interview with TIME Magazine, Foley admitted that this false 

advertising strategy would be a “big focus for us in the coming years.” Specifically, Foley 

doubled down on Peloton’s false claim that its bike costs $58 a month and explained how he 

wants to keep those “monthly payments down” so Peloton can “really open it up”: 

We want to make our products even more affordable than they are today. Right 
now our bike is just over $2,000. But it’s $58 a month. $58 a month [divided] 
by two people who are going to use it. Maybe even three people in your home. 
If we can get those monthly payments down, we can really open it up. And we 
want everyone in every socioeconomic class to be able to afford Peloton. 
That’s a big focus for us in the coming years.  

See https://time.com/5839552/peloton-ceo-john-foley/ 

39. In that same interview, Foley indicated Peloton could sell a “cheaper bike” in the 

future using the same false and misleading advertising. When asked about the optimal price point 

for this “cheaper bike,” Foley made clear that Peloton wanted consumers thinking in terms of 

“monthly payments,” and that he wanted those monthly payments to “get to 20 bucks a month 

per person” so they could compete with “low-end gym chain affordability”: 

I wouldn’t think about it as an initial cash-outlay. I would think about it as a 
monthly payment. I think if you can get to 20 bucks a month per person, you’re 
starting to get below Planet Fitness-style, low-end gym chain affordability, and 
we think that that’s a pretty big opportunity for Peloton. 
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See id. Such advertising would also be false and misleading because the price will never “get to 

20 bucks a month” so long as Peloton requires the consumer to purchase its content subscription 

at $39/month on top of the “20 bucks a month.” 

40. This advertising has misled and confused consumers. For instance, an individual 

on Reddit.com asked if anyone knew “what’s up with this peloton [sic] commercial that says it’s 

$58 a month? Are they raising the subscription cost on us?” Another individual responded to this 

post suggesting that “maybe $58 is just for the bike” as the “subscription alone is 42.” This 

individual further noted that “if that’s the case,” this advertising was “misleading to people:” 

 

 

 

https://www.reddit.com/r/pelotoncycle/comments/djfth8/58_a_month/ 

41. As another example, a different individual recently commented on YouTube that 

“a lot of people that I have talked to did not realize when they first bought a Peloton” that “in 

order to use the tablet, you have to pay a $40 a month subscription.” See 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Uwct2RcKrEA. This is because Peloton’s advertising 
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misleadingly claims the bike only costs $58/month and hides the fact that the content 

subscription is required at an additional price. 

42. Peloton’s false advertising has been willful. Peloton knew that its advertising was 

false, misleading, and deceptive because it knew that the true monthly price for its products was 

$97 a month (as it previously advertised), not the $58 a month it was telling consumers. Indeed, 

at the same time Peloton was falsely telling consumers its products cost “$58 a month,” it told 

investors in a May 2020 presentation that the true “average monthly cost” was $97 a month, as 

shown below. See https://investor.onepeloton.com/static-files/701c7555-55e3-4f82-8b70-

b58463ed44aa. 

 

Peloton further knew that the $58 a month price tag was not available to “anyone who wants it.” 

43. On information and belief, Peloton was alerted of its false advertising by letters 

dated March 12, March 25, April 3, April 9, and May 5, 2020. But not only did Peloton explicitly 

refuse to cease its false advertising campaign or make any adjustments to its advertising, weeks 

later, on May 26, 2020, Peloton’s CEO doubled down on Peloton’s false “$58 a month” claim in 

a TIME Magazine interview, asserting that Peloton’s false advertising strategy would be a “big 

focus for us in the coming years.” 

PELOTON’S FALSE AND MISLEADING STATEMENTS CONCERNING ITS MUSIC OFFERINGS 

44. In addition to Peloton’s false, misleading, and deceptive pricing advertisements, 

Peloton has intentionally engaged in another false advertising campaign also designed to steal 

customers from ICON and unfairly increase its market share. For example, Peloton purposefully 
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disseminated false and misleading information about its products throughout the country, 

including by misleading customers concerning Peloton’s music offerings.  

45. Peloton was sued in 2019 in a $300,000,000 lawsuit accusing it of stealing music 

rights from artists around the globe.  

46.  Leading up to the music lawsuit in 2019, Peloton had recognized the importance 

of music to the success of its platform. As Peloton said in a June 27, 2018 press release, “[o]ur 

members have embraced music as central to the Peloton experience and consistently rank it as 

one of the top aspects of the brand.”  

47. Peloton placed such an emphasis on its music that it consistently employed a 

“Head of Music” and its first acquisition was a B2B music aggregation and streaming service 

called Neurotic Media. Despite having a specific executive in charge of music and having 

acquired a company that specialized in music aggregation and streaming, Peloton began to 

systematically and intentionally use music without paying for the proper licenses. 

48. Peloton advertised the playlists for its classes, including ways to “easily see the 

artists and songs powering” Peloton rides. Below are some examples. 
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September 30, 2017 Peloton Instagram post advertising playlists 

 

October 5, 2017 Peloton Instagram post advertising playlists 

 

 

October 27, 2017 Peloton Instagram post advertising playlists 

 

 

January 4, 2018 Peloton Instagram post advertising easily 
accessible playlists 
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49. A review of these advertisements and the copyright lawsuit demonstrates that 

Peloton was advertising music that, upon information and belief, it never had proper rights to and 

that it knew it could not maintain in the future. Examples include Thugz Mansion, Closer To The 

Heart, Clique, 300 Violin Orchestra, Straight Up, among many others. 

50. As of recent, Peloton stated that its Artist Series classes are its “hottest” classes. 

Peloton has also advertised these classes. Below are some examples. 

 

October 11, 2019 Peloton Instagram post advertising a Jennifer 
Lopez Artist Series Class 

 

October 11, 2019 Peloton Instagram post advertising a 
Jennifer Lopez Artist Series Class 

 

51. According to the music lawsuit, Peloton also lacked licenses to certain Jennifer 

Lopez and Lizzo songs. Peloton knew at the time it advertised these artist series classes and other 

specific playlists that it could not maintain them all in the future. These are only examples of 

specific advertisements from Peloton related to music that it did not have the rights to offer and 

that it knew it could not maintain in the future, ICON believes there are many more. 

52. The above Instagram posts are one way Peloton was advertising and making its 

playlist available to the public. Potential buyers of Peloton and ICON’s products were able to 
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“easily see the artists and songs powering” Peloton rides. These easily accessible advertisements 

misled consumers into believing that Peloton’s music offerings would include the specific artists 

and songs that Peloton had advertised. Consumers did not expect to purchase a Peloton bike and 

then have Peloton significantly reduce and remove songs and artists that it had advertised were 

available on its platform. 

53. However, after the filing of the copyright lawsuit, Peloton began removing classes 

that featured songs that were identified by the publishers in the lawsuit and it stopped using a 

selection of popular songs from artists such as Taylor Swift, Rihanna, and Lady Gaga. After this 

decision, Peloton began receiving negative feedback and comments about the deterioration in its 

music offerings. One user said she noticed a “huge difference” in the user experience in recent 

months. “The music now consists of TONS of ‘80s music (and not even good ‘80s music for the 

most part — think doing an ab workout to a slow jam by Lisa Lisa and the Cult Jam), a few rap 

artists, and a bunch of stuff I've never heard of for the most part.” 

54. Peloton knew if it could mislead consumers concerning its music offerings that 

consumers, like the one above, who were unhappy with the “huge difference” in the music 

offerings that were advertised compared to what Peloton was actually providing would be 

essentially locked into the Peloton bike due to the money and time they had already spent. 

Peloton knew consumers would be unwilling to switch from a Peloton bike to an ICON bike 

after their Peloton purchase. 

55. Peloton’s advertising of its music offerings misled consumers to believe that 

Peloton’s platform would at least include the music advertised, and not that Peloton would 

significantly reduce its music offerings after a consumer had purchased the Peloton bike. Peloton 

engaged in a classic bait-and-switch.  
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56. Peloton engaged in this intentional misleading music advertising campaign 

despite its expertise in music streaming and licensing. Peloton’s advertising misled consumers 

into believing that its music offerings would continue in the future. At the time Peloton made its 

misleading advertisements concerning its music, it knew it could not maintain that music because 

it never possessed the proper rights. Peloton’s misleading advertising caused ICON to lose 

customers and market share. 

57. Peloton’s misleading advertising also allowed Peloton to gain an unfair advantage 

in the market by offering consumers a music experience that ICON was not allowed to offer on 

the same terms, because ICON was abiding by the law and honoring the rights of those music 

owners. This unfair practice and misleading advertising induced and enticed customers to invest 

in the Peloton Bike and platform. Once those customers were induced by Peloton’s bait-and-

switch to purchase a Peloton bike instead of an ICON bike, they had no realistic alternative but 

to continue with Peloton’s content platform and the customer was lost to ICON. 

PELOTON’S FALSE AND MISLEADING STATEMENTS CONCERNING INNOVATION 

58. Peloton has also stated it is a “very very hardcore technology company. We make 

a tablet computer better than apple . . . We are as hardcore of a tech shop as anything in NYC 

right now.” Peloton has made many other public statements about being an innovator and 

“building something that’s the first of its kind.” 

59. Peloton has made many false statements in advertisements that it is the innovator 

in Interactive and Competitive Fitness space and that it has invented the technology that makes 

up the Peloton platform. Peloton knows that it has simply copied pre-existing technology and 

stolen ideas from other companies. Peloton’s statements that it is an innovator and that the 

Peloton bike is the first of its kind are literally false. And by making these literal false 
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statements, Peloton creates a false perception in the market that Peloton is the only source for 

Interactive and Competitive Fitness equipment. These false statements have influenced 

consumers’ purchasing decisions causing ICON to lose customers. 

60. Peloton knows it is not an innovator, that it has not invented anything, and that its 

bike is not the first of its kind. Peloton’s statements therefore have no basis in fact. 

61. When Peloton first tried to enforce the patents that it had acquired through being a 

“very very hardcore technology company,” it was met with arguments that its patents were 

invalid. Flywheel, the defendant in Peloton’s first patent infringement test case, challenged the 

patents using ICON’s ’730 Patent (discussed above). The Patent and Trademark Board agreed, 

stating that ICON’s ’730 Patent, in combination with another, showed a reasonable likelihood 

that Peloton’s challenged patent claim was unpatentable.  

62. Peloton could see the writing on the wall, and that it would soon be exposed as a 

“tech company” without any patents and that all of its public statements about being the 

innovator and the “first of its kind” would fly back in its face. Peloton was desperate at this 

point. It had represented to consumers and the market that Peloton was an innovator with patents. 

 

and that its patents would never withstand a challenge given ICON’s previous 

products and patents that all pre-date Peloton. Peloton knew this would expose its market 

deception.   

63. So, in a case where Peloton was the plaintiff and seeking damages against 

Flywheel, on information and belief, ICON believes that Peloton paid millions of dollars to 

Flywheel to force it out of the market and coerce Flywheel to sign a declaration stating that it had 

copied Peloton and infringed upon its patents. Also, on information and belief, ICON believes 
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Peloton tried to cover-up the fact that its very first test case seeking to enforce its patents had 

backfired and it was going to very publicly lose all its patents. So Peloton paid for Flywheel’s 

silence and cooperation. 

64. Peloton will likely hide behind a confidential settlement agreement with Flywheel 

to avoid public disclosure of these facts. But what it cannot hide from the public are disclosures 

in its 10-Q that it paid $59 million in legal settlements during the time it settled the Flywheel 

case. 

PELOTON’S FALSE AND MISLEADING STATEMENTS CONCERNING COMPETITION 

65. Peloton has engaged in a pattern of false and misleading statements regarding its 

innovation as a first-to-market company and that it lacks any competitors. These statements, 

alone and in combination with one another, create a belief amongst consumers that there is no 

alternative to Peloton. For example, in March 2019, Foley was interviewed and explained in the 

interview that nobody else in the market offers an in-home cycling product like Peloton’s: 

“Nobody else provides them, so we're kind of a category of one.” Foley made a similar statement 

in a November 2019 interview while explaining Peloton’s future plans. Foley explained that 

Peloton bought a manufacturer to “get cost advantage over any future competitors that we don't 

have yet.” These statements have no basis in fact. 

66. Peloton has misled consumers that there are no alternatives to the Peloton bike, 

and this deception has caused ICON to lose customers.  

67. Peloton knew at the time it was making these statements to consumers that it was 

not the only company offering an in-home cycling platform. For example, at the time these false 

statements were made, Peloton had sued Echelon and Flywheel and alleged in those cases that 
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both of those companies were “direct competitors.” And Peloton refers to ICON as a direct 

competitor in this lawsuit. 

68. Also, at the time Peloton made these statements there were numerous side-by-side 

comparisons of Peloton’s bike and ICON’s NordicTrack bike. For example, the Peloton Bike vs 

NordicTrack S22i comparison by TreadmillReviews.com (150,816 views and 283 comments) 

posted on June 13, 2019 (https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zW04zXaaT0M). Peloton even 

refers to a side-by-side comparison video of ICON and Peloton bikes in its complaint against 

ICON.  

69. Clearly at the time Peloton was making statements that it has no competitors it 

knew otherwise, and it was taking advantage of media coverage to mislead consumers. 

PELOTON’S WILLFUL INFRINGEMENT OF ICON’S PATENTS 

70. Many of ICON’s technological innovations and acquisitions related to its iFit 

technology are protected by, inter alia, a portfolio of utility and design patents, including United 

States Patent Nos. 6,601,016 (“’016 Patent”); and 7,556,590 (“’590 Patent”) (collectively, 

“Asserted Patents”). Copies of the ’016 and ’590 Patents are attached as Exhibits A and B, 

respectively.   

71. The ’016 Patent was filed on April 28, 2000 and issued on July 29, 2003. ICON is 

the owner by assignment of the ’016 Patent.  

72. The ’590 Patent was filed on May 8, 2006 and issued on July 7, 2009. ICON is 

the owner by assignment of the ’590 Patent. 

73.  
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74.  

 

 

  

75. ICON’s Asserted Patents both generally relate to providing enhanced engagement 

with an exercise device through the ability of a user to compete with other remote users in a 

virtual competition from the comfort of their own home. 

76. The ’590 patent discloses and claims a novel system that allows exercisers to 

experience the same enjoyment of competition you could find in a health club group class, such 

as a “spinning class” with stationary exercise cycles, from the comfort of their own home and 

seeks to solve the problems of exercise boredom, lack of motivation, or lack of engagement that 

often plagues exercise devices.  

77. The ’590 Patent discloses that it improves over the prior art because “[i]t would 

be a definite improvement in the art of home exercise equipment to provide the desirable benefits 

of group exercise in the convenience of a home setting” and on a user’s own time schedule. 

78. The ’590 Patent discloses and claims technology that is an improvement over 

prior art in that it allows “enabling one or more users on one or more exercise devices to interact 

in a competitive environment” (’590 Patent at 4:13–15) over a network that “allows users to 

compete while exercising in their own homes on home fitness equipment.” (’590 Patent at 4:40–

44). 
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79. Part of that competitive environment includes allowing for comparison between a 

rider’s performance metrics with other users so that the riders “compete with and/or otherwise 

interact with another user on either a real time or a delayed time basis.” It was not well-

understood, routine, or conventional at the time of this patent for users to be able to compete in a 

virtual competition, such as a cycling class, either in real time or a delayed time basis. This 

improvement of the ’590 Patent and its disclosures allow an exerciser flexibility on when to start 

an exercise workout/competition on an exercise device against other exercises in a class, race, or 

competition through networked access to that class, race, or competition. This was an 

advancement over prior art health club group classes or at-home exercise devices. 

80. It was not well-understood, routine, or conventional to provide a competitive at-

home fitness class or experience with networked access to a live competition in which one 

exerciser can compete in a virtual competition relative to a first start time and a second exerciser 

can compete in a virtual competition relative to a second start time. It was not well-understood, 

routine, or conventional at the time to provide a virtual competition between users over a 

network where the users could race against “other live users, or time-delayed live users.” (’590 

patent at 23:34–35). 

81. The ’590 Patent provides enhanced interactivity and user engagement with 

exercise because it gives the user the ability to compete against other users in the same 

competition from the convenience of home and solves one of the problems in the prior art of 

regular at-home exercise devices that lack “the synergistic environment of the health club and the 

expertise of personal trainers and instructors.” (’590 patent at 2:7–9). The ’590 Patent provides a 

competitive environment in which “a first user on a first exercise device…may compete against a 
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second user on a second exercise device…at a second location, even when the locations are in 

separate cities, states or even countries.” (’590 patent at 24:25–29). 

82. The ’590 Patent also provides enhanced exercise motivation by disclosing that 

“[a]s computer devices…[that]…monitor or track the user performance at exercise devices…to 

determine the distance traveled by each user, the current position of each user in the race is 

communicated…to [a] server across [a] network.” (’590 Patent at 25:10–17). The server 

“compares the user performance information” and “communicates all of the various race 

positions to each of the…computer devices...or exercise devices to allow for a display of the 

relative user positions in the race on display devices.” (’590 Patent at 25:15–32). This new 

system of comparison and display of users’ performances was not well-understood, routine, or 

conventional at the time. 

83. The ’016 Patent discusses that one of the “limiting factor[s] of many exercise 

machines is that they are boring to utilize because of their inability to encourage an user to 

continue exercising” (’016 Patent 2:42–44) and that a “user must reenter their personal data to 

the monitor each time the user utilizes an exercise machine.” (’016 Patent 1:59–60). 

84. The unconventional improvements of the ’016 Patent to the prior art includes a 

method and system of allowing a plurality of exercisers to compete against each other based on 

fitness activity parameters monitored at each exercise machine. To compete, those exercisers 

have unique IDs associated with them and their respective fitness activity and are processed and 

compared at a server and displayed to a user, who can also access the fitness activity of other 

users at his own monitor. This new system of comparison and display of users’ performances 

was not well-understood, routine, or conventional at the time and provides motivation to exercise 

by competition with another remote user over a server based on unique IDs. 
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85. This allows for competition with other known users, with distinct user profiles, 

and allows for the competition, comparison, and access to other user’s exercise data remotely. A 

user can engage with other unique users via a network to enhance user engagement and 

interactivity while exercising. The functionality disclosed and claimed in the ’016 Patent 

allowing for competition between users at different locations on different exercise devices with 

users assigned their own unique IDs provides technological advancements over the prior art and 

was not well-understood, routine, or conventional at the time of the invention. 

86. The ’016 Patent also solves the problem of user data having to be reentered at a 

monitor each time at a specific exercise machine. The ’016 Patent allows for the storing of 

exercise data that can be accessed, added to, or displayed at any number of different exercise 

machines and allows for a user’s unique exercise data, workout history, and statistics to be 

portable. These functionalities provide technological advancements over the prior art and were 

not well-understood, routine, or conventional at the time. 

87. Peloton is in the business of manufacturing and selling, among other things, 

exercise equipment and associated products and services that permit online fitness activity, 

storage, and analysis. 

88. Peloton imports, makes, uses, sells, and offers to sale exercise treadmills with an 

associated tablet monitor that runs the Peloton App (“Peloton Tread”). 

89. Peloton also imports, makes, uses, sells, and offers to sell software associated and 

for use with its Treads to provide online streaming and online fitness activity, storage, and 

analysis. This software is known as the Peloton App and it is incorporated into the tablet 

computer console provided with the purchase of the Tread and is available, in addition, for at 

least iOS and Android platforms. 
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90. Peloton’s Treads and associated software comprise systems that display a 

graphical comparison of user’s fitness activity. Peloton imports, makes, uses, sells, or offers for 

sale its Treads and software within the United States and within the State of Delaware, either 

directly or through established distribution channels. 

91. Peloton’s Treads and associated software include an exercise machine monitor 

providing graphical comparisons of current fitness activity to its users and associate users’ 

fitness activity with a universal identifier. The exercise machine monitor utilizes a universally 

accessible server system to display a graphical comparison such that an exerciser is enabled to 

compete against a plurality of exercisers. 

92. Peloton’s Treads and associated software include an exercise machine monitor 

that receives current fitness activity in a particular markup language format from a universally 

accessible server system. The current fitness activity is associated with a universal identifier. 

93. Peloton has had notice of the ’016 Patent and its applicability to the Peloton Tread 

as early as April 8, 2016, the date of ICON’s complaint for patent infringement against Peloton 

for the infringement of the ’016 Patent by Peloton’s leaderboard features found in the Peloton 

Bike. 

94. Peloton has had notice of the ’590 patent and its applicability to the Peloton Tread 

since at least March 4, 2014 when it cited the ’590 patent in an Information Disclosure Statement 

during the prosecution of U.S. Patent No. 9,174,085.  

COUNT I  

(Infringement of the ’016 Patent) 

95. By this reference ICON realleges and incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as 

though fully set forth herein. 
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96. The Peloton treadmills, including the Peloton Tread and Peloton App, include a 

computer with a graphical display or screen that monitors fitness activity of users exercising on 

the Treads as well as receiving fitness activity for exercise on other Peloton Treads.  

97. ICON alleges on information and belief that the fitness activity received by the 

computers is received in a particular markup language. 

98. Peloton provides Peloton treadmills with associated computers that monitor 

exercise performed on the Peloton treadmills. 

99. Peloton’s treadmills, including the Peloton Treads and Peloton App, as well as 

Peloton’s servers use identifiers such as usernames to associate fitness activity with users. 

100. The Peloton treadmills, including the Peloton Treads and Peloton App display a 

graphical comparison, including a graphical leaderboard, of users’ fitness activity using the 

computers that monitor fitness activity of users exercising on the Treads to allow competition 

between users of Peloton’s treadmills. 

101. Peloton has infringed and continues to infringe one or more claims of the ’016 

Patent by making, using, selling, offering for sale within the United States, or importing into the 

United States products, systems, or services, including, but not limited to, its treadmills and 

associated software, including at least the Peloton Tread and Peloton App, and appurtenant 

products and services, which embody one or more of the claims of the ’016 Patent. 

102. Peloton’s Treads and associated software, at least the Peloton Tread and Peloton 

App, and their appurtenant products and services infringe at least claims 49 and 53 of the ’016 

Patent.  
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103. Peloton provides instruction to users of Peloton’s treadmills, including the 

Peloton Treads and Peloton App, through user manuals and online through its websites, how to 

use Peloton’s treadmills in a manner embodied by one or more of the claims of the ’016 Patent.  

104. ICON alleges on information and belief that users of Peloton’s Treads infringed 

and continue to infringe one or more claims of the ’016 Patent by using within the United States 

Peloton’s product systems, or services, including, but not limited to, Peloton’s treadmills and 

associated software, including at least the Peloton Tread and Peloton App, and appurtenant 

products and services, which embody one or more of the claims of the ’016 Patent.  

105. The conduct of Peloton as set forth hereinabove gives rise to a cause of action for 

direct and indirect infringement of the ’016 Patent, pursuant to at least 35 U.S.C. §§ 271 and 281 

et seq.  

106. Peloton has sold infringing products, such as the Peloton Tread, Peloton App, and 

their appurtenant products and services, despite an objectively high likelihood that its actions 

constitute infringement. 

107. Peloton’s acts of infringement have caused damage to ICON, and ICON is 

entitled to recover the damages sustained as a result of Peloton’s wrongful acts in an amount 

subject to proof at trial. 

108. Peloton’s infringement of the ’016 Patent will continue to damage ICON’s 

business, causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, unless it is 

enjoined by this Court.  

109. Peloton has willfully infringed the ’016 Patent, entitling ICON to increased 

damages under 35 U.S.C. § 284 and to attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in prosecuting this 

action under 35 U.S.C. § 285.  
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110. By reason of the foregoing, ICON is entitled to relief against Peloton, pursuant to 

at least 35 U.S.C. §§ 283–85. 

COUNT II  

(Infringement of the ’590 Patent) 

111. By this reference ICON realleges and incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as 

though fully set forth herein. 

112. The Peloton treadmills, including the Peloton Treads and Peloton App, include an 

associated computer communicatively connected to the Tread that can monitor the use of the 

Tread relative to a first start time of use.  

113. The Peloton treadmills, including the Peloton Treads and Peloton App, include a 

computer, which is communicatively connected to the treadmills. The treadmills are configured 

to communicate using an exercise communication protocol and the computer communicates 

using a computer communication protocol.  

114. Peloton provides Peloton treadmills with associated computers in connection with 

its Peloton App and studio cycling competitions. 

115. Peloton also induces users to provide a phone, tablet, or other computer and to 

communicatively connect the computer to a user’s treadmill, including a Peloton Tread through 

the Peloton App. 

116. When a user provides a phone, tablet, or other computer to communicatively 

connect the computer to the user’s Peloton Tread, Peloton uses the user’s treadmill and computer 

through the Peloton App to provide the infringing goods and services described herein.  
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117. The exercise communication protocol and the computer communication protocol 

used by the Peloton treadmills, including the Peloton Treads and Peloton App, are different types 

of communication protocols. 

118. ICON alleges on information and belief that Peloton treadmills utilize a translator 

device to translate fitness data between the exercise communication protocol and the computer 

communication protocol. 

119. The Peloton servers maintains communication with Peloton treadmills, including 

the Peloton Treads and Peloton App, through a network system. The network system includes 

networking components in the server and in the Peloton Treads, and a network connection 

extending therebetween. 

120. By associating users with a profile that may be accessed from any Peloton 

treadmill, including the Peloton Treads and Peloton App, the Peloton treadmills are configured to 

enable multiple users to exercise thereon and to track multiple performances of other users. 

121. The Peloton treadmills, including the Peloton Treads and Peloton App, include 

options to watch and participate in classes, including streaming live or on-demand classes. 

122. The Peloton treadmills display a comparison of at least the use of two treadmills 

relative to start time with the means for providing communication between the computers of the 

treadmills in the comparison. The Peloton treadmills are configured to enable at least one user to 

exercise thereon and to track a plurality of performances during a virtual race and to compare 

performances by at least two users. 

123. Peloton has infringed and continues to infringe one or more claims of the ’590 

Patent by making, using, selling, offering for sale within the United States, or importing into the 

United States products, systems, or services, including, but not limited to, its Peloton treadmills, 
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including the Peloton Treads and Peloton App, and appurtenant products and services, which 

embody one or more of the claims of the ’590 Patent. 

124. The Peloton Tread, Peloton App, and appurtenant products and services infringe 

at least claim 1 of the ’590 Patent.  

125. Peloton provides instruction to users of Peloton’s treadmills, including the 

Peloton Treads and Peloton App, through user manuals and online through Peloton’s websites, 

how to use Peloton’s Treads in a manner embodied by one or more of the claims of the ’590 

Patent.  

126. ICON alleges on information and belief that users of Peloton’s treadmills 

infringed and continue to infringe one or more claims of the ’590 Patent by using within the 

United States Peloton’s product systems, or services, including, but not limited to, Peloton’s 

treadmills and associated software, including at least the Peloton Tread and Peloton App, and 

appurtenant products and services, which embody one or more of the claims of the ’590 Patent.  

127. The conduct of Peloton as set forth hereinabove gives rise to a cause of action for 

direct and indirect infringement of the ’590 Patent, pursuant to at least 35 U.S.C. §§ 271 and 281 

et seq. 

128. Peloton has sold infringing products, such as the Peloton Tread, Peloton App, and 

appurtenant products and services, despite an objectively high likelihood that its actions 

constitute infringement. 

129. Peloton’s acts of infringement have caused damage to ICON, and ICON is 

entitled to recover the damages sustained as a result of Peloton’s wrongful acts in an amount 

subject to proof at trial. 
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130. Peloton’s infringement of the ’590 Patent will continue to damage ICON’s 

business, causing irreparable harm, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, unless it is 

enjoined by this Court.  

131. Peloton has willfully infringed the ’590 Patent, entitling ICON to increased 

damages under 35 U.S.C. § 284 and to attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in prosecuting this 

action under 35 U.S.C. § 285. 

132. By reason of the foregoing, ICON is entitled to relief against Peloton, pursuant to 

at least 35 U.S.C. §§ 283–85. 

COUNT III 

(Violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act) 

133. By this reference ICON realleges and incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as 

though fully set forth herein. 

134. Peloton made false and misleading statements of fact about Peloton’s products in 

violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a). Those statements misrepresent the nature, characteristics, 

and/or qualities of Peloton’s products, and are expressly false, impliedly false, or both. 

Specifically, Peloton has made false statements concerning its innovation, the market 

competition, its music platform, and its pricing in order to mislead consumers to buy its products. 

135. Peloton knew, or should have known, that its advertising was false, misleading, 

and deceptive because it knew that it did not invent new technology,  

that it was not first to the market, that other competitors exist, that it could 

not maintain its advertised music offerings, and that its bike and subscription cost more than $58 

per month. 
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136. Peloton’s false and misleading statements have deceived, and have the tendency 

to deceive, a substantial segment of its intended audience about matters material to purchasing 

decisions. Peloton’s violations have caused harm to the public and, unless restrained, will further 

damage the public. 

137. Peloton’s deception is material because it is likely to influence the customer's 

purchasing decision. 

138. Peloton’s products are offered in interstate commerce. Similarly, Peloton’s false 

and misleading statements were, and are, made in commercial advertising and promotion in 

interstate commerce. 

139. Peloton’s violations have proximately harmed ICON. As a result of Peloton’s 

violations, ICON has suffered, and will continue to suffer, damage to its business and goodwill. 

140. ICON has lost, and will continue to lose, sales and profits and incur increased 

advertising and marketing costs. 

141. ICON’s immediate, irreparable injuries have no adequate remedy at law, and 

ICON is entitled to injunctive relief and up to three times its actual damages, and/or an award of 

Peloton’s profits, as well as costs and ICON’s reasonable attorneys' fees under 15 U.S.C. §§ 

1116-17. 

COUNT IV 

(Violation of Delaware Deceptive Trade Practices Act, 6 Del. C. § 2531, et seq.) 

142. By this reference ICON realleges and incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as 

though fully set forth herein. 

143. Peloton made false and misleading statements of fact about Peloton’s products in 

violation of the Delaware Deceptive Trade Practices Act by misrepresenting the characteristics 
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and benefits of its products and services and engaging in conduct that creates a likelihood of 

confusion and misunderstanding concerning its products and services. Specifically, Peloton has 

made false statements concerning its innovation, the market competition, its music platform, and 

its pricing. These statements were intended to mislead consumers to buy its products. 

144. Peloton knew, or should have known, that its advertising was false, misleading, 

and deceptive because it knew that it did not invent new technology,  

that it was not first to the market, that other competitors exist, that it could 

not maintain its advertised music offerings, and that its bike and subscription cost more than $58 

per month. 

145. Peloton’s products are offered in interstate commerce. Similarly, Peloton’s false 

and misleading statements were, and are, made in commercial advertising and promotion in 

interstate commerce. 

146. Peloton’s false and misleading statements have deceived, and have the tendency 

to deceive, a substantial segment of its intended audience about matters material to purchasing 

decisions. Peloton’s violations have caused harm to the public and, unless restrained, will further 

damage the public. 

147. Peloton’s violations have proximately harmed ICON. As a result of Peloton’s 

violations, ICON has suffered, and will continue to suffer, damage to its business and goodwill. 

ICON has lost, and will continue to lose, sales and profits and incur increased advertising and 

marketing costs. 

148. ICON’s immediate, irreparable injuries have no adequate remedy at law, and 

ICON is entitled to injunctive relief. On information and belief, Peloton has willfully engaged in 
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its deceptive trade practices and ICON is entitled to costs and reasonable attorneys' fees pursuant 

to 6 Del. C. § 2533(b). 

COUNT V 

(Declaration of Non-infringement of the ’026 Patent) 

149. By this reference ICON realleges and incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as 

though fully set forth herein. 

150. Peloton’s Complaint alleges that ICON infringes the ’026 Patent, but it fails to 

specifically allege how or what claims ICON allegedly infringes. Peloton’s Complaint also fails 

to take any position on the scope of the ’026 Patent claims.  

151. Without any specific identification of asserted claims or any allegations 

concerning the scope of any asserted claim, ICON denies any alleged patent infringement of the 

’026 Patent. Accused devices lack certain claim elements found in the ’026 patent, such as a 

“plurality of sensors.” 

152. ICON has not infringed and does not infringe, either literally or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, any valid and enforceable asserted claim of the ’026 Patent. 

153. ICON has not infringed and does not infringe, either contributorily, by 

inducement, or in any other manner, any valid and enforceable asserted claim of the ’026 Patent. 

154. An actual and justiciable controversy exists between Peloton and ICON regarding 

Peloton’s allegations that ICON infringes the ’026 Patent. 

155. ICON is entitled to a declaration of this Court stating that it has not infringed and 

does not infringe the ’026 Patent in any manner whatsoever. 

156. ICON additionally seeks any further relief deemed appropriate by this Court 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2202. 
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COUNT VI 

(Declaration of Invalidity of the ’026 Patent) 

157. By this reference ICON realleges and incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as 

though fully set forth herein. 

158. Peloton’s Complaint alleges that the ’026 Patent is valid. 

159. ICON denies that the ’026 Patent is valid. 

160. Each of the asserted claims of the ’026 Patent is invalid for failure to comply with 

the requirements of patentability, including those set forth in 35 U.S.C. §§ 101, 102, 103, 

and/or 112. 

161. An actual justiciable controversy exists between Peloton and ICON regarding the 

validity of the ’026 Patent. 

162. ICON is entitled to a declaration of this Court stating that the asserted claims of 

the ’026 Patent are invalid. 

163. ICON additionally seeks any further relief deemed appropriate by this Court 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2202. 

COUNT VII 

(Declaration of Non-infringement of the ’521 Patent) 

164. By this reference ICON realleges and incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as 

though fully set forth herein. 

165. Peloton’s Complaint alleges that ICON infringes the ’521 Patent, but it fails to 

specifically allege how or what claims ICON allegedly infringes. Peloton’s Complaint also fails 

to take any position on the scope of the ’521 Patent claims. 
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166. Without any specific identification of asserted claims or any allegations 

concerning the scope of any asserted claim, ICON denies any alleged patent infringement of the 

’521 Patent. Accused devices lack certain claim elements found in the ’521 patent, such as a 

“plurality of sensors.” 

167. ICON has not infringed and does not infringe, either literally or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, any valid and enforceable asserted claim of the ’521 Patent. 

168. ICON has not infringed and does not infringe, either contributorily, by 

inducement, or in any other manner, any valid and enforceable asserted claim of the ’521 Patent. 

169. An actual and justiciable controversy exists between Peloton and ICON regarding 

Peloton’s allegations that ICON infringes the ’521 Patent. 

170. ICON is entitled to a declaration of this Court stating that it has not infringed and 

does not infringe the ’521 Patent in any manner whatsoever. 

171. ICON additionally seeks any further relief deemed appropriate by this Court 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2202. 

COUNT VIII 

(Declaration of Invalidity of the ’521 Patent) 

172. By this reference ICON realleges and incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as 

though fully set forth herein. 

173. Peloton’s Complaint alleges that the ’521 Patent is valid. 

174. ICON denies that the ’521 Patent is valid. 

175. Each of the asserted claims of the ’521 Patent is invalid for failure to comply with 

the requirements of patentability, including those set forth in 35 U.S.C. §§ 101, 102, 103, 

and/or 112. 
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176. An actual justiciable controversy exists between Peloton and ICON regarding the 

validity of the ’521 Patent. 

177. ICON is entitled to a declaration of this Court stating that the asserted claims of 

the ’026 Patent are invalid. 

178. ICON additionally seeks any further relief deemed appropriate by this Court 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2202. 

JURY DEMAND 

ICON hereby demands a jury trial on all issues so triable in this case. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, ICON requests relief as follows: 

A. A judgment finding Peloton liable for infringement of one or more of the claims of 

ICON’s Asserted Patents. 

B. Orders of this Court temporarily, preliminarily, and permanently enjoining Peloton, 

its agents, servants, and any and all parties acting in concert with any of them, from 

directly or indirectly infringing in any manner any claim of ICON’s Asserted Patents, 

pursuant to at least 35 USC § 283; 

C. An award of damages to ICON for infringement of the Asserted Patents, in an amount 

to be proved at trial, pursuant to all applicable law, including at least 35 U.S.C. § 284; 

D. An award of treble damages to ICON, pursuant to all applicable law, including at 

least 35 U.S.C. § 284; 

E. A declaration that this case is an exceptional case; 

F. An award of ICON’s costs in bringing its counterclaim actions, pursuant to all 

applicable law, including at least 35 U.S.C. § 284; 

Case 1:20-cv-00662-RGA   Document 35   Filed 09/09/20   Page 43 of 46 PageID #: 785



 
 

44 
RLF1 23931948V.1 

G. An award of ICON’s attorneys’ fees in its counterclaim actions, pursuant to all 

applicable law, including at least 35 U.S.C. § 285; 

H. A declaration that ICON does not infringe, induce infringement, or contributorily 

infringe any valid and enforceable claim of the’026 and ’521 Patents; 

I. A declaration that Peloton’s asserted claims from the’026 and ’521 Patents are 

invalid; 

J. A declaration that Peloton’s claims are meritless and exceptional;  

K. An award of ICON’s costs of suit, attorney’s fees, and expenses in defending against 

this suit; 

L. That Peloton has violated federal and state law by engaging in unfair competition, 

false advertising, and deceptive trade practices; 

M. For temporary, preliminary, and permanent injunctive relief enjoining Peloton and 

its officers, directors, agents, affiliates, employees, divisions, branches, subsidiaries, 

parents, and all others acting in active concert or participation with it, from engaging 

in further acts of unfair competition, false advertising, and deceptive trade practices; 

N. For an award to ICON for its damages, costs, expenses, and pre-judgment and post-

judgment interest for Peloton’s unlawful acts of unfair competition, false advertising, 

and deceptive trade practices; 

O. For an award to ICON for profits earned by Peloton attributable to its unlawful acts 

of unfair competition, false advertising, and deceptive trade practices; 

P. Reasonable attorneys' fees and costs against Peloton; 

Q. Pre-judgment interest, pursuant to at least 35 U.S.C. § 284; 
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R. Post-judgment interest, pursuant to at least 28 U.S.C. § 1961(a); 

S. For any and all other relief to which ICON may show itself to be entitled; and 

T. Such other and further relief as this Court shall deem just and proper. 

 

 
OF COUNSEL: 
 
David R. Wright 
MASCHOFF BRENNAN GILMORE  
ISRAELSEN & WRIGHT PLLC 
111 South Main Street, Suite 600 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111 
(801) 297-1850 
 
Tyson K. Hottinger 
MASCHOFF BRENNAN GILMORE  
ISRAELSEN & WRIGHT PLLC 
100 Spectrum Center Drive, Suite 1200 
Irvine, California 92618 
 (949) 202-1900 
 

/s/ Frederick L. Cottrell, III   
Frederick L. Cottrell, III (#2555) 
Christine D. Haynes (#4697) 
Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A. 
920 N. King Street 
Wilmington, DE  19801 
(302) 651-7700 
cottrell@rlf.com 
haynes@rlf.com 
 
Attorneys for Defendant 

Dated:  August 28, 2020 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on August 28, 2020, true and correct copies of the foregoing document 

were served, via e-mail, on the following: 

Michael J. Flynn 
Morris, Nichols, Arsht& Tunnell LLP 
1201 North Market Street 
P. O. Box 1347 
Wilmington, DE  19899 
 

Steven N. Feldman 
Douglas J. Dixon 
Christina V. Rayburn 
Karen Younkins 
Haoxiaohan Cai 
Joseph W. Crusham 
Hueston Hennigan LLP 
523 West Sixth Street, Suite 400 
Los Angeles, CA  90014 
 

 
       /s/ Christine D. Haynes   
       Christine D. Haynes (#4697) 
       haynes@rlf.com 
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